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law was involved. | saw him hit by a semi-trailer because
the guy did not want to slow down for the picket line.
| saw that violence, another one that could have been
avoided if final offer selection was there.

Superior Cheese, another of our contracts that | was
involved with, were on strike for just over a year. A
situation where, nearer the end, every time we would
make a proposal the company would change their last
offer. We would say, we will take your last offer, and
they would change it. We said, we will take your next
offer; they would change it. They did not want us. We
lost that one too.

| had mentioned a couple of these strikes that are
out of town. One of the big pluses for final offer
selections, in Manitoba, in the City of Winnipeg, people
have more options. If you lose a job in Manitoba, if
you go on strike and you lose a job or you do not get
back, or whatever—you get fired. Thereare other jobs.
When you are in Dauphin and you have been on strike
for 18 months, you do not have the same options. There
are not the number of jobs you can go to. You become
blackballed because they do not want to hire you,
because you stand for a union. Souris Superior Cheese
was even worse. A smaller community, those employees
suffered greatly for the money they lost. They also
suffered for their future employment and their future
treatment.

* (1030)

| cannot sit here and believe anyone that has been
through a strike or anyone that really knows anything
about it would want to take away or prevent those
situations. Sure people have said, well, we have not
seen the Westfair like we did in’87—partially because
of FOS, but also, because just the cycle of time. You
do not always get the bad strikes every year. The
important thing, that in those 72 applications before
the Labour Board, and | think that is a signal we should
look at, every time it has been approved, working
Manitobans voted that, yes, | want FOS. If Manitobans
were not in favour of FOS, they would be voting against
it when it came in front of them on that ballot the
Labour Board puts out.

They said, yes, | want it. | have also heard some
people say that employers are not in favour of FOS.
I do not agree with that. Prior to the legislation coming
into Manitoba, we have negotiated FOS in a number
of collective agreements. We still have it with the co-
operatives across the province. We had four recent
decisions under final offer selection with four different
selectors, and the process continues. The co-ops are
confirmed and believe in final offer selection. They may
not get up here and make a presentation because they
do not have to. They believe in it; they have negotiated;
they agreed to it.

1977, Empress Foods, a subsidiary of Canada
Safeway—we negotiated final offer selection. We used
it; we went to final offer selection. There again, another
decision, that is five other decisions we have had. Even
Westfair Foods, back in 1981 when they first opened
up their SuperValu stores, negotiated the process. They
continued in’83, continued in’85. It was removed in’85
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at the request of the employer because of a sign of
the times of where they wanted to go. They did not
want to leave that fair chance out there. They wanted
a strike. They figured—and | think we surprised them
in’87—there is no way those part-time employees are
going to go on strike. Their view of an employee is,
they are productive from six months to two years, and
after that they are a burden on their company.

| heard that at a presentation once from one of their—
the person who looks after the front end. They have
a big computer printout that monitors the items the
person rings through, monitors the number of
employees in their line. They said to us that all their
research shows that the most effective time for an
employee is six months to two years. After that, they
are no longer in their prime. They figured that people
would not go out in’87, so that is why in’85 they removed
it.

Well, | talked about us having those five other
decisions, four, when the co-op wanted Empress Foods.
| will be honest; the selector chose the company’s
proposal in all five of those situations. Now, we have
had two final offer selections under the legislative
process, and they selected our choice once, in Unicity,
and selected the employer’s once. So we are six for
the employer’s selection and two for our selection, but
that is not six losses and two wins. We won, the
employer won in each one of those cases—maybe
Unicity we will leave out—because the parties
negotiated sincerely and got most of the material off
the table. The final offer selection just resolved the
ones the parties could not agree to.

In Vista Park Lodge, one of the situations we won,
there was only one issue left. It was the pension plan.
We had negotiated even the cents per hour, but
philosophically we could not agree. We wanted it to be
the union plan, the Canadian Commercial Workers’
Industry Plan; the employer wanted their plan, like a
private-run RRSP, a money purchase plan, and that
was all the selector had to choose from. it worked.
Both parties won because they had negotiated all the
other items. It works.

Now, you have heard it from a lot of people, and |
have heard it from someone else, that they had not
heard or had not learned anything new from the union.
| think it was the Liberals said that they had not heard
anything new from the union bosses. Well, here is a
process that is different to an alternative to strikes.
How could anyone take away that alternative?

| am here to speak on behalf of the people who are
not here and who have gone through it. | feel sorry for
the Richard Naherny who got up at this podium and
told his story about the suffering he has gone through.
He admitted that he was found guilty of contempt of
court for saying, what, scab shopper, and interfering
with the filming of a private conversation. | feel sorry
for everything he has been through, being terminated,
being in the arbitration process, being transferred to
another store and having his hours cut. | really feel
sorry for him. His situation could have been avoided.

| feel sorry for Kathy Kraychuk, who was here and
told you the story of how she was burnt in the chest.
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| was there that day. | mean, can you imagine this
respect— 1! mean, strikes can have this effect on people.
It was a customer. It can turn the most meek and mild
mannered person; they will lose control. What would
drive an individual to take his cigarette and butt it out
in a women’s chest?

That is what strikes do to people, and that is only
one thing. We had about 30 or 40 different cases of
assault. We had women knocking cameras, doing
damage to our—like, we were filming some things. Mild
mannered people—strikes do that to them. They do
it to our members too. | am not going to say they do
not do it to our members. Our members have done
things that they are sorry for, and they have paid the
price, but it could have been avoided. You can help it
be avoided.

I am sorry for the innocent bystander who was shot
in the Westfair strike. His only crime was being out late
and having to go to the washroom in the back lane.
We could have avoided final offer selection, we could
have avoided that man being paralyzed for life, if final
offer selection had been in effect. How you can say to
his family, | do not care, we have to take away that
balance? ! do not understand.

The peopie that | am really here to talk for today
are the ones that are not here. The reason they are
not here is they have not been through a strike yet.
They do not know what is coming, but | guarantee you
it will come. We do not have to look—Manitoba is not
unigue. Westfair Foods, seven or eight years ago no
one would have expected a strike like that, but iet us
look around. Let us look at the Gainers in Alberta. Let
us look at Griffin Steel in our own history in Manitoba.

Let us look at the—I do not know who the next
employee is going to be that is going to involve us in
a very bitter strike, a very violent strike, a very costly
strike that could be avoided. How we can sit here and
say we do not care about those people? That is who
I am here for and on their behalf. They would like to
be here if they knew what they are going to have to
go through in the future. On their behalf| say that FOS
has to stay. FOSis good for Manitobans, all Manitobans,
not just the 35 percent who are in unions. | mean we
have heard this figure, that it only affects one-third of
the Manitobans. FOS is good for all of us.

1t is good enough for our doctors. We have the Leader
of the Liberal Party (Mrs. Carstairs) who supports
arbitration for the medical association. It is good enough
for the police. It is good enough for some health care
workers and some of the teachers and everything else,
why is it not good enough for everybody so that they
can have some justice and dignity? All it does is bring
a level playing field and that does not exist in a lot of
situations. It does not exist in small-town Manitoba. It
does not exist in the unit where there is only 12 or 15
people and the employer can hire replacement workers.
it does not exist and it restores it.

Two last points | would like to cover and that is |
look at and | wonder about the reason for the change
in final offer selection. | have not seen anyone other
than the Chamber of Commerce and one or two
employers asking for the repeal of final offer selection.
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Manitobans are not doing it. If you look at the
presentations that are here, | have not seen it in the
news, | have not seen it to the people | have spoken
to. They have not said, this is a bad piece of legislation,
we have to get rid of it. That is not what is happening.
Manitobans like this legislation and those who have no
comment have not experienced it, but if they knew
what it was all about would be here and we would have
more than 110 speakers, we would be overdone with.

* (1040)

The last comment | would like to talk about is | noticed
a comment from the Liberals looking at a three-year
trial period. | appreciate the shift, | appreciate their
realizing that maybe this is not bad legislation. |
appreciate that Mr. Rose, Mr. Patterson, Mr. Edwards
and your Party, but if you are going to make a change
you have to make it longer, not shorter.

We heard all kinds of comments that we have not
seen the results and you have looked at the statistics
and everything else. Giving it an additional 10 months,
| do not see that. You have a five-year period that is
in there. Let us let it run at that. If you want to make
achange, let uslengthenit. Adding an extra 10 months,
that is not really going to give it a chance to really
prove what it can do. Manitobans have a legislation
that is designed to run for five years, let us let it run
five years. If you want to make any change, make it
longer; let it work.

Those are my comments. Any questions that you
have | would be more than pleased to answer.

Mr. Steve Ashton (Thompson): | too was interested
in what has been talked about in the paper today. A
10-month, | do not know, a reprieve, remembering that
all the 10 months will do is just delay the time in which
final offer selection was going to disappear. | would
rather see a longer period, quite frankly, but we had
suggested if you look at the bare minimum that a four-
year period would be the absolute bare minimum,
recognizing that in 10 months, by the time you even
get the data for this year the Bill is passed through.
| just want to focus in on that. As you said, it is the
first time the Liberals have indicated there is any value
to this legislation; that is a fairly dramatic shift. You
are suggesting to this committee that a three-year
sunset, in this case 10 months, not even 10 months,
we are less than that now, nine months and a bit is
really not going to be satisfactory to give final offer
selection a chance.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Ziegler. Am | pronouncing your name
correctly?

Mr. Ziegler: Yes, that is right. Quite clearly, 10 months
is not enough. When you look at the legislation first
coming in, in 1988, the bulk of negotiations were
ongoing and did not have the access to it, and that is
why you had Unicity Taxi.

Unicity Taxi, that strike in 1988, went on for about
70 some-odd days. The only reason it occurred was
because those negotiations were ongoing, so that is,
if you will, a strike that looks bad for FOS because it
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went for 70 days. If final offer selection had been
available that strike would not be there. You have to
discount that first year of statistics because a lot of
negotiations were ongoing and you could not get it. |
will be honest, there was some trepidation by parties
the first year to use final offer selection because they
were not quite sure what would happen, what kind of
selections would come out, who would be appointed
and everything else. The first year is not of much use
to look at. We start looking at 1989, adding another
10 months is not enough, if you really want to see how
it works, at least five years. | personally would like to
see it longer.

Mr. Ashton: Well, | too have been somewhat puzzled
by the three-year suggestion, quite frankly, the Minister
and ourselves could not proclaim this until next year.
It is not out of line with legislation, it was introduced,
really it is not much different than a straight repeal;
often we repeal legislation. You are saying very clearly
that you want to see a far longer period than 10 extra
months, and you feel that it is absolutely vital if we are
going to give any kind of proper analysis to it, that we
have considerably more experience than just the
additional 10 months, which only gives us three years
out of the original planned five.

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly we need more time. | have been
through the negotiation process and everything else.
| say | want six, | could probably live with four, but
three just is not enough.

If | look at it, it seems like it is a process to get us
by the next provincial election and then we will deal
with it afterwards, that is what it almost appears to
me. It is good legislation, let us let it get a chance to
run.

Mr. Ashton: It is interesting you talked in the bargaining
vernacular when we suggested four years; that was in
essence our final offer. We felt that was as far as we
could go. We did not like to have to even reduce the
period from five years. | believe five years, especially
given the fact that it is working. If it was not working,
fine; but it is clear.

We bent over backwards to the Member for St. Vital
(Mr. Rose), to try and give it a chance, that is why we
suggested the four. We would much prefer five, but
that is what you try and do to save something that is
good legislation. To suggest the 10 months now,
something which the Conservative Minister of Labour
(Mrs. Hammond) herself could announce as a matter
of Government policy this minute, really | am surprised.
I might have expected the 10 months from the Minister
of Labour, and | do not mean this as any criticism by
knowing her perspective on this Bill, but | am rather
surprised.

As | said, it is interesting when you look at the
vernacular of negotiations here because | do not know
if the Liberals are looking for a way of saving face. If
they are looking for a way of recognizing the fact that
they were wrong in their initial criticisms, and | believe
this committee has proven fundamentally that they were
wrong, there has to be a better way. | would like to
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ask you, you have been through the situations,
discussions, negotiations; can you make some
suggestions, perhaps to the Liberals who are trying to
find some way of saving face, to admit they were wrong?
Do you have any suggestions to them, perhaps
suggestions that go beyond what | have been attempting
to do to get them to recognize that this has to be given
more of a chance?

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, and | have seen the shift, they
have discovered the way themselves to save this
legislation. That is from listening to working Manitobans.
It is not listening to me and it is not listening to the
union representative. To say that, | sat there through
this process and | spoke to the woman who almost
lost her kids; | spoke to the one whose family broke
down; and | spoke to those. Clearly, they can say,
Manitobans like this.

| have seen that from the questions and | appreciate
that from the Liberals. | have seen the questions you
have given to our members and to the other members
in the last little while. They have reflected that you now
understand what this legislation can prevent. | think
that gives the opportunity to go to four years, by saying
that Manitobans have asked us for it. They have said
that it works. We have convinced that it is not only
good for them but our society. That is the way.

| have been moved to tears by some of the speeches.
They are real life. | am moved to tears even more when
| think about the next person who is going to have to
go through this, maybe one year from now, instead of
10 months from now. Give it the full four years and
maybe we will have a thing, and then maybe we can
convince the Conservatives it is good legislation. We
will need more than 10 months; we will need a year
and 10 months. Then, hopefully, Manitobans can
convince the Conservatives that it is good legislation
as well, because it is good for Manitobans.

Mr. Ashton: You must be an optimist if you feel that
we can convince the Conservatives on this. But then
again, if we have convinced the Liberals to admit that
final offer selection is not bad legislation, there may
be hope yet for the Conservatives. In fact, what has
puzzled me, and you touched on it, is the fact that we
have the second highest strike rate in the world in
Canada. We are second only to Italy. That has been
the consistent trend year after year after year.

* (1050)

| put this to Mr. Smith from Westfair, who would like
to talk about the literature in very sanitized terms. |
will get into some of Mr. Smith’s comments in a minute,
but how is it in Canada, after that experience,
companies such as Westfair themselves and other
companies cannot even themselves see that there is
a need for a better way? The second highest strike
rate in the world—in a lot of cases because when you
get into a strike in Canada, it is very difficult to get
out.

You mentioned in terms of the saving face. | went
through a strike, in 1981, that went three months. i
believe that would not have gone three months if there
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was some way of getting the parties back to the
bargaining table. In fact, it took, the election of the
NDP Government at the time, bringing the Inco
representatives from Toronto and bringing in some of
the key people from Steelworkers to get discussions
going, because the two bargaining parties could not
even talk to each other any more. Anybody who went
through that strike would be the first to admit that was
happening. Now, if final offer selection had been
available, that process would have done.

| want you to elaborate on what you had said, because
I have been through it, not anywhere near as much as
a lot the people in this committee. | have never been
through as much as they have been, but | have been
through that situation, a strike situation—two of them
actually. To those people on this committee who have
not been through a strike situation, can you perhaps
give us some idea of the kind of difficulty you can run
into in a lengthy strike, where the two parties not only
cannot get a contract, where in a lot of cases they
cannot even talk to each other after a period of time?

Mr. Ziegler: What happened—
Mr. Chairman: Yes. Mr. Ziegler.

Mr. Ziegler: | caught myself before | went too far.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you.

Mr. Ziegler: What happens in a situation is that
effectively once a strike begins, that first minute, both
parties are caught. They have to convince their
supporters, whether it is the company negotiator who
has to convince the stockholders or convince the board
of directors or the executive of the company that their
decision was right and it was worthwhile, and they get
caught. Likewise, the union negotiating committee and
executives negotiate. They get going along and nothing
happens for the first few weeks after a strike begins,
because the parties entrench their positions. They
cannot say, well, we only went out for a day, and
therefore everything has happened, we are back
together. it goes in and you get to the situation—

| said negotiations have nothing to do with logic. It
just does not. It is like you and me. When | get into
a situation with my kids—my children, they do not like
it when | say kids—they make a mistake or they do
something wrong but they do not want to admit it. They
need their way of saving face. Both parties realize that
they have to deal with each other, but they also have
to deal with their superiors or, in the union’s position,
their members. They do not want to say that | was
wrong to take you on strike. | am not saying they were,
but they do not want to say that as the employer does
not want to say that | was wrong for causing this strike
to his superiors.

There are not very many options that are available
during a strike to ailow the parties to do that. | mean
you have conciliation mediation before you go on strike,
but there are not very many opportunities. Final offer
selection can take the burden off the two parties and
say well I stuck to my position, but someoneelse chose
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the other. It gives them that opportunity to not say they
were wrong. They know that they are going to be able
to modify their position so both are more reasonable
when they make that selection, but now they can pass
the buck. | mean they can say | did not give in to the
other party. The selector chose their position, so that
is one way that it can work.

Mr. Ashton: It is interesting when you get into what
happens, because | really believe that is one of the real
problems in Canada that we have had. You end up in
situations—now let us take Westfair as an example. |
read out an advertisement that Westfair Foods placed
in the newspapers in 1987, read it out to Mr. Smith.
He said he had not been responsible for the
advertisement, but it was interesting because he had
said to this committee that Westfair Foods respected
free trade unions and collective bargaining.

| read comments from the newspaper and my
understanding, and you can correct me if | am wrong,
is that the strike vote was taken. It was supported by
in excess of 90 percent of the employees. Now this ad
said well there are only 150 people picketing. There
are 600 people have crossed the picket lines. This is
out of a total workforce of 1,600 or whatever the total
was. | mean if one was to read that article, | do not
think one would expect that Westfair Foods had any
respect at all for the union.

I ask Mr. Smith directly, did he not recognize the fact
that there was a free and democratic vote taken and
that 90 percent of the employees supported the strike.
| would like you to explain to the committee what
happened then, because | have seen strikes where you
may end up with a 90 percent support. People cross
the picket lines because they feel they have no other
choice. They see other people taking their jobs away.
In the case of Westfair, they were hiring strikebreakers
before the strike began. That was confirmed from Mr.
Smith.

| just want to deal with that. Take Westfair as an
example. If you can explain what had happened with
the strike vote, and then what happened once the strike
occurred, so that we can get a balance to Mr. Smith’s
comments on the one hand of respecting free trade
unions and then some of these advertisements which
not only were vicious personal attacks on the president
of your local, but also were, | believe, attacks on the
workers themselves through the demographic vote who
voted for the strike and were subject to these repeated
newspaper attacks that did not explain Westfair’s
position. They attacked the union, and they attacked
the employees.

Mr. Ziegler: You have to put some of Mr. Smith’s
comments in context. | will give you a little bit of the
background history, the last negotiations, not the one
at the strike, the one before.

The company infiltrated the union negotiating
committee. They had two individuals who were reporting
directly back to the management. One individual was
told to take all the handouts, and as soon as the
negotiating committee met they were to courier it to
this management individual. The second individual was
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just directly reporting. The day the contract was
negotiated he was given a job at head office out of
the bargaining unit. | mean just a coincidence that he
got a full-time job there. The two of them admitted
that they were talking to management and that
continued on.

The company was trying in the next round of
negotiations to infiltrate our negotiating committee. It
got so bad we had to ask people to take an oath saying
that they are loyal and that they will not disclose any
information and if they do they will resign from the
company. | mean, it is that bad, but now you put that
in perspective as to what happened in’87. As | said,
the company honestly did not believe that their
employees would stand up to them. | mean, they try
and brainwash them, and they try and treat them so
badly that they have no power left; they intimidate their
employees. Then the strike vote came in, and | was
there, and that vote was accurate.

He makes these comments about all the people they
had and everything, and all the people wanting to go
back to work. Well, if there was so many people going
back to work, why did they have the ads in the paper
asking for people? | mean, under their situation, they
should have been running fine. We were keeping
employee counts and customer counts. Our people
know who was in the store and who was not in the
store, and there were more people hired from off the
street than there were from our members. We know
what was going on. Why were they hiring or putting
ads out asking for people? Why did they not open the
Transcona store? They were never able to get up to
full operation in Winnipeg; they did not get that last
store going. But you had the indication and you saw
it in Gainers in Alberta, where the employer before the
strike put out an ad and hired 1,000 people before the
strike began. They did that and they trained it here.

Mr. Ashton: Well, | put that directly to Mr. Smith on
last Friday. | quoted from the newspaper reports, and
he attempted to deflect from that, but you are saying
quite clearly that Westfair Foods was hiring
strikebreakers even before the strike began, and during
the strike they hired a significant number of
strikebreakers during the entire period, the 125-day
period.

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, we had an arbitration involved.
It goes to show where Westfair is not a bad employer.
The company used to pay their employees that they
trained. They would bring them in for 20 hours—six
o’clock, five o’clock in the morning. They would train
them before the store would open. Well, before the
strike, they changed that. Because they knew a strike
was coming, they started hiring these people, or bringing
them in, and giving them free training. They required
them to work for 20 hours, to work on a cash register,
to memorize the codes, and they did not pay them a
cent.

Through that arbitration, we got a list of employees
that did that just a couple weeks or the month before
the strike began, and the company admitted in
arbitration that there were a lot of other people hired
during the strike, the same situation, but they would
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not give us those names. There were several hundred
more in that category. Clearly, there is no doubt; the
company has never denied it. They hired a bunch of
people before the strike began and they hired a bunch
of people during the strike. So clearly there were a lot
of employees that were hired to break that strike, and
the company had planned the strike well in advance
of it occurring.

Mr. Ashton: Well, it is interesting in terms of what
happened, because Mr. Smith from Westfair Foods—
and Westfair Foods, by the way, is the only employer
that we have had in this committee that has been
represented by an official of that company. Any other
company—in fact, we have really only had one other
company—has sent their legal representatives here to
do the talking for them. Now Westfair Foods said, and
this is exactly what Mr. Smith said on Friday, that they
have very good labour relations at Westfair Foods. When
| asked him how he indicated that was the case, he
said, well, there was good attendance at the Christmas
parties at Westfair Foods.

Now, you painted a pretty bleak picture of what
happened in 1987. | want to look at what has happened
since that time, 1987 to 1990, leading up to this year’s
contract. Leaving aside the Christmas parties, although
you can comment on that if you want, | was quite frankly
amazed—I do not know where Mr. Smith is—he invited
me to go down and talk to people in the stores. Well
| have, and | have talked to a lot of people. Boy, you
do not even have to ask someone where they work if
they are working in the retail food industry. | mean, if
someone is from Safeway, if someone is from Westfair,
you get a completely different picture and that is what
amazes me. | mean, Safeway is their biggest competitor
in terms of Westfair, and yet, most people—I am not
saying they are a perfect employer—most people said
Safeway is a fairly decent employer. We have had people
come to this committee. You talk to anyone and they
start talking about the terrible climate of labour
relations, you can almost guarantee that they are
working for Westfair.

| want to ask you because it is very relevant to this
committee. We are dealing with a strike that perhaps
could have been prevented if final offer selection was
available. What is your assessment of labour relations
climate at Westfair Foods? Is it as rosy as Mr. Smith
suggests, or are there continuing problems?

*

(1100)

Mr. Ziegler: Well, if it is rosy, the roses are dead and
done.- (interjection)- You got that. My main duty with
our union is presenting arbitrations, dealing in mediation
with employees who have had some discipline or not
been paid for their vacation and everything else. The
feelings with Westfair Foods are no better now than
they were the day the strike ended. Maybe | will not
go that far. After the strike they are probably a little
better than they were right after the strike, but they
are still pretty bad. We have a company who—I| mean,
we have trouble with people getting breaks, people
want to go to the washroom, everything. It is absolutely
terrible, the atmosphere; employees are still intimidated.
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They are so intimidated that they are even scared
to testify—I had a hearing on one thing about people
working less than four hours. The company believes
it does not have to follow the legislation. They believe
that, if they want to send someone home or allow
someone to go home early after an hour or two, they
do not have to follow employment standards, it does
not apply to them. | try to get people to just say that
on such and such day | only worked an hour and a
half or two hours. Employees said, | will testify as long
as my supervisor, or no one is going to be there from
the company. | said they are going to be there. They
are scared to just tell the truth because it will affect
in their scheduling. The company has a lot of power,
and they do that because they schedule for these
employees hours and that is their lifeline.

The Christmas party. If anything, it reminds me almost
like the Government sometimes, the federal
Government, where | may not like what they have done
in a lot of things, but when they give me a free tax
credit on my RRSP, | will take it. It is not because |
iike what they are doing because it benefits me, so if
Westfair wants to throw a free Christmas party and |
get a free drink or free meal or something, yes, maybe
some people attend it, but do not take that as saying
that the relationships are any better than they were.

Mr. Ashton: | will be interested to hear in my next
discussions with people who are employees at Westfair
Foods what they think about that comment too, because
! did find it rather amazing. You are saying that it has
even got to the point where really since the strike people
cannot even get breaks. They are hassled about going
to the washroom. Maybe | misunderstood what you
said, but is that really what is happening with this so-
called progressive employer?

Mr. Ziegler: We have had problems ongoing for a
number of years. When it suits the company, it is siow,
they will send someone home because they do not
want to pay them. We have had situations, some in the
past, some recent, where people have had nosebleeds
and they have not been able to get relief from their
cash register. People have to go to the washroom and
they say, we are too busy, | cannot let you go. One
woman stood for seven hours at her till; they would
not let her have her break.

Their other view is that they will work you for 45
minutes, they wiit give you your 10-minute break, and
then they will work you for five hours afterwards. Then
they say, well, we have met our obligations. The concept
is that it should be sort of the middle of your shift so
you get a break. That is what it is called, a break. That
is not to them, as long as they give you your 10 minutes,
15 minutes, they are happy.

Mr. Ashton: | just want to put it in perspective. Is that
a problem, for example, at Safeway, a similarly large
employer? | do not want to be unfair to Westfair, or
are they the only ones that are really creating this type
of situation?

Mr. Ziegler: There is no comparison between Safeway
and Westfair. | have to relate an example and | have
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to give Safeway a big pat on the back. We had a member
who committed suicide about a week and a half ago
at that store; the member had been terminated for
theft. It had a big impact on the employees because
a lot of the employees had said, yes, | saw so-and-so
take a package of cigarettes. This happened Thursday
evening. By Friday Westfair (sic) had a counsellor in
that store talking to employees, giving them time off
work to talk about what had happened.

You could have someone come into the store with
a machine gun and mow down half the employees, and
Westfair would just go hire another couple of people
the same day to fill in the store. There is no comparison
between the two as to how they treat their employees.
There is no comparison. We have no trouble with breaks
at Safeway.

Mr. Ashton: Well, it is interesting because Safeway
has not been before this committee arguing that final
offer selection, the repeal, and as | said, this is the
only employer—I find that absolutely amazing—the only
employer that has come before this committee with an
official from that company. The only other employer
really that has made a presentation before this
committee is Unicity Taxi. Westfair and Unicity Taxi really
are the only two employers. One, in this case, had a
legal representative come here. It just amazes me, when
one looks at their record as employers.

| am just wondering, you have had some knowledge
to the Unicity as well. | do not want to get into
speculation, but I really think that one of the reasons
these particular companies have been here is they want
to keep this climate of labour relations. They want to—
in fact Mr. Smith said you cannot have good collective
agreements unless you have fear. Fear of a strike and
fear of a lockout. From your experience in dealing with
Westfair and also your knowledge of Unicity, is that a
concern you have, that if final offer selection is repealed
it will give much more of a leeway, a blank cheque if
you like, to companies to do the kind of things you
have been talking about here today?

Mr. Ziegler: You have to look at both of those
employers. You look at Westfair Foods, Andy Smith,
they still have final offer selection in a lot of the contracts
in the western provinces and that is because most of
them are our unions—they have got a thing—are not
taking them on as vigorously or trying to stand up for
their members’ rights. i cannot understand that double
standard. It is good for the rest of Canada but it is
not good for Manitoba. That is because they do not
want to break the unions in the other provinces. They
want to break us here.

I look at Unicity Taxi. | presented before the Labour
Board our case on application for final offer selection.
You have to understand Unicity Taxi. Unicity Taxi also
wants to get rid of a union for its members to the point
where Mr. Watson was up talking about the French
translation of the preamble to The Labour Relations
Act being different than the English translation of The
Labour Relations Act, so therefore this is a charter
issue. Therefore, under charter issue we should strike
down final offer selection, or we should not invoke it.
He was grasping at straws that are unbelievable. His
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whole attitude of that presentation was to prevent us
the opportunity from using final offer selection, because
if you did that | guess we would be back on strike
again. You have to remember, three contracts ago we
took a wage freeze at Unicity Taxi. Two contracts ago
we had | think about a six-week strike. Last contract
we had a 70-day strike, and that was only 70 days
because of the legislation.

There is a group who want to get rid of the union.
We have an arbitration award after the last strike with
them. Joy Cooper who used to be vice-chair on the
Labour Board ruled against the company. They tried
to take away the duty of our bargaining unit members
and give it to some supervisors and call it a
technological change. The arbitrator indicated that was
not proper and ordered them to change it. They would
not agree. We had to go back to her for clarification.
They would not agree. They are now saying they are
not going to live up to an arbitrator’s decision. They
only have one desire.

Now, the point that | make on that is who is next?
Isit going to be my daughter? She is young now. Maybe
it is going to be one of my sisters. Maybe it is going
to be one of your daughters or sisters or nieces who
is going to be put through it. Who is next?

Mr. Ashton: You were stating quite clearly to the
committee that you believe, in a number of recent cases
here in Manitoba, that there were employers whose
main goal was to break the union. You have indicated
to the number of strikes where because it is legal to
hire replacement workers, scabs if you like, you can
continue the operation of the firm even though
employees are on a legal strike. You are suggesting
there are employers who want to break the union and
that by taking away final offer selection, all we are
going to do, if this committee and others at some point
in time vote to repeal final offer selection, is make it
that much easier for them to keep people out on a
picket line for month after month and potentially break
the union as well.

*

(1110)

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, that is what | have said. Clearly,
that is what a lot of other people have said at this
microphone over the last week and a half, two weeks.
It goes beyond that. It may be one point that has not
really been made about this legislation that should be.
This legislation can have another process, | mean, it
can work when the two parties are not out to bash
each other’s heads either. It can work in that regard
also. It allows the parties when they just disagree to
give it to someone else to make that decision. We have
used it in a lot of situations, those are the ones that
do not make the air, where the Parties use it to both
their benefit. They get settlements.

Vista Park Lodge used final offer selection, was not
a company that was out to break the union. FOS worked
in that situation and it helped both of them. It can be
used and | think with time it is going to be used by
more and more parties where they are not out get each
other but where it is an alternative to allow them to
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save face or to allow them to deal with a situation
where they just philosophically do not agree with the
union, but yet not have to resort to a strike. That is
one point that maybe has not been made, but that is
a very big role that FOS can play in Manitoba. It does
not have to be only with the unions or employers, there
are a lot of employers who are not out to break the
unions. There are a lot of good employers. | have dealt
with a lot of good employers.

There are some of them that need that extra tool.
That is a big plus that maybe has not been dealt with
on final offer selection and should be kept in mind.

Mr. Ashton: | agree with you. There are good employers
out there and it is interesting that we are not getting
thegood employers, the ones with good labour relations
coming before this committee saying get rid of final
offer selection. The only two companies that we have
had come forward are the companies that have had
some of the most bitter strikes in recent memory. That
is why | really wonder if it is not because they wish to
break the union.

By the way, | do not know if you are aware, but Mr.
Smith tried to suggest that somehow in Manitoba that
MFCW has worse contracts than the affiliates, the iocals
in other provinces. The way | read it, it was almost as
if, just looking at some of the comments that they put
in the newspaper, and this is my interpretation, that
they are trying to teach MFCW, local 832 of the UFCW
a lesson.

| would just like to ask you, you have obviously have
knowledge of other areas, what you think of that
comment?

Mr. Ziegler: By andlarge, | think our contract is superior
to any of them in Canada. There may be an individual
clause here or there that they have better. That is the
same with every contract. We have some very good
contracts in a small employer that has one good benefit
but that has a lot of other bad, that is just the give
and take or negotiations.

You have to look at Andy Smith, where he is coming
from. We are in negotiations right now, and if you—

Mr. Ashton: | am not sure. We do not have any
Government Member here currently. With all due
respect, | do not know, -(interjection)-

Mr. Chairman: Charlotte is right there.

Mr. Ashton: We have one Member, the Minister is not
here. | think this is a very important discussion. If the
Government Members do not wish to continue the
sitting at this point in time, we can come back when
they are organized. This is a very serious matter.

Mr. Chairman: There are six Members present. That
is a quorum. We will carry on.

Mr. Ashton: My apologies, Mr. Ziegler. | find it very
frustrating to say the least that the Minister, herself,
is not here. This committee has a purpose. | believe
you are relating information that is very important for
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our deliberations. My apologies, | hope that the Minister
and other Government Members could be asked to
attend this committee. | think it is really important.
Perhaps if you could continue your comments | am
quite willing to adjourn if the Minister —Ireally do believe
for the purpose of the presentations that it would be
far better if we had the Minister here.

Mr. Jay Cowan (Churchill): On a point of order. There
is a certain practice that has grown up over the years
around the conducting of committee meetings. One of
them is that the Minister responsible be here at the
committee meeting when presenters are making their
case. What is being said here today is very important
to the whole issue of final offer selection. We expected
the Minister would want to be here to listen.

We have in the past recessed the committee for a
short period of time to allow Ministers to carry on
business that they felt they had to carry on for five or
ten minutes and then reconvene the committee when
they came back. What | would suggest we do in this
instance is recess the committee until the Minister can
come back, and then we reconvene the committee.
That is a standard practice in the past and certainly
something we did when we were in Government and
we would expect the present Government to do.

Hon. Charlotte Oleson (Minister of Family Services):
Thank you, but | do not think there is any need to
recess the committee. The Minister will be back shortly.
I will not elaborate on Hansard on the reasons for her
short absence, but | think that you could go ahead
with the committee and proceed. She will be back
momentarily.

Mr. Ashton: Yes, | think we have been fairly reasonable
in terms of duration. If the Minister has an urgent
meeting and cannot attend, we could have recessed.
What | am concerned about is the fact there was no
notice. We do not know when the Minister will be back.
| really believe this presentation, other presenters,
deserve to have the Minister here to listen to those
comments. | would suggest that we recess till the
Minister is able to attend.

Mr. Chairman: It is not paramount that the Minister
be present at all times. If it is the will of the committee
that they want to recess until the Minister returns, then
that is fine. What is the will of the committee?

Mrs. Oleson: | disagree with the Member. | think you
could go on. | had indicated that the Minister would
be back momentarily. You could continue with the
committee, and the Minister will be able to read the
comments in Hansard. If there is some point that is
being missed, | am sure she will be apprised of it by
her staff, and we could continue with the meeting. We
have a lot of people to hear. | would suggest we get
on with business.

Mr. Cowan: On a point of order. | suggest we get on
with the business as well, and the business is having
the Minister who is responsible for a piece of legislation
here to listen to the presentations that are made. This
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piece of legislation is as important as any other business
that we do in this House. It is a standard practice for
a Minister to want to be present at all times to hear
what people are saying, ordinary Manitobans are saying
to the Government with respect to the legislation they
bring forward. We have representation here.

Well, | see the Minister has returned. | just make the
point that in essence, the committee work did stop until
the Minister had an opportunity to return. it probably
would have been easier had we recessed, but having
not done so, | suggest that we ask Mr. Ziegler to repeat
his last answer which the Minister missed and carry
on with the questioning.

Mr. Chairman: Mr. Cowan, you do not have a point
of order. We will just carry on.

AhEh%

Mr. Cowan: First time this year | did not have one.
Mr. Chairman: No, that is not correct either.

Mr. Ashton: | realize the Member may not have had
a point of order, but he had a point. | think perhaps
we should ask Mr. Ziegler to give the answer that he
was in the process of giving. Our apologies, but | do
believe it is important for the Minister to be present.
The Minister in particular, who is bringing this Bill
forward, should be hearing all the arguments on various
sides of the issue, and in this case from the many
presenters such as yourself for saying that the Minister
is wrong and ill advised. So please continue your
comments.

hhh*%

Mr. Chairman: Mrs. Hammond, on a point of order.

Hon. Gerrie Hammond (Minister of Labour): We were
talking about breaks there. | did not really feel | had
to ask the committee to recess to have a few minutes
out of committee without it getting to be a giant
discussion. | have been here every minute of this
committee pretty well. | really think that the comments
about me being out are a little unfair. If Mr. Ziegler
feels he has something that | should hear while | am
here, | would be very happy to hear him, but | sincerely
object considering the amount of time this committee
has sat and the amount of time | have sat here and
really listened to what people are saying.

Mr. Chairman:
point of order.

Mrs. Hammond, you do not have a

Mrs. Hammond: Either?

Mr. Chairman: Either.
EE X X3
Mr. Ashton: Mr. Chairperson, just back to Mr. Ziegler,

if you would like to just continue. | think this is an
important issue.
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Mr. Ziegler: To restate the question as | see it was
about the comments by Mr. Smith about our contract
being poorer than the other provinces. As | indicated,
| strongly feel that our contract is superior to any of
them in western Canada. | know for sure that of the
two provinces, B.C. and Alberta, there is no comparison.
Saskatchewan is close, but | still think we are superior.
You have to take that comment in light of what is going
on.

We are about to begin negotiations with Westfair
Foods. | mean, they are trying to make us look bad
so that they can—they have interfered with the
negotiation process so many times and you have to
take it into light of those previous actions and | am
sure that is what he is doing there. He is trying to make
us look bad in front of our members. | will put our
contract up and we have done comparisons against it,
and our contract stands up. He wants to get rid of this
union so you have to take that in light of that.

Mr. Ashton: | also thank you for clarifying what the
situation is in terms of final offer selection because |
tried to get Mr. Smith to clarify, and | do believe a
number of Members of this committee had a
misunderstanding about what the situation is.

| believe the documents—I mean quite frankly | am
amazed when | read this letter. It bears no relationship
at all to what Mr. Smith had said. The effect or intent
of the letter was—and | do not know if you heard his
comments, but essentially you are saying that this is
a procedural letter, it relates to a contract that does
not include final offer selection in the free-standing way
as it did previously, prior to 1987 our understanding
is it was in place.

The reason | am asking this question is because
yesterday we had someone here who worked for Econo-
Mart who said that in the future she believes, not only
if you take away final offer selection from legislation,
it will not be available in the legislative sense, but it
actually could in some ways become an issue, an issue
that might even contribute to a strike in terms of the
sense that people would want to get back . . . final
offer selection, something that will be taken away if
this legislation is passed.

| am just wondering if you could elaborate on that
following from your very important contribution to this
committee, in clarifying the, | would not say
misinformation, | do not want to make that sort of
accusation, but | would say that people were misled
as to the effect of these letters.

Mr. Ziegler: Quite clearly, and | think it is important
to note what happened in 1987. Article 41 is not an
agreement by the parties to a final offer selection
process. What it is, was an attempt by the company
to opt out of the legislation.

The strike in 1987 was prolonged by the company
wanting a legal binding agreement saying there is no
such thing as FOS. They could not get that so what
they settied for in place is a document that opts out
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of as much of it as it can. They are saying you cannot
deal with this, you cannot deal with that, you cannot
do this, you cannot apply for final offer selection until
you jump through this hoop and you jump through that
hoop. What Westfair did was to negotiate out of the
process. They have no support for it here in Manitoba.
Everywhere in Canada it is good legislation, but they
are not trying to bust the union there. Here it is not
good legislation. | mean it is good or it is not good,
and it is good.

Mr. Ashton: It is amazing because if one was to sit
here Friday afternoon, one would have assumed that
Westfair, well, they had final offer selection in place
until’87. The interpretation Members of this committee
had from their presentation was that they still had it
in place and it would still be in place in 1990.

What you are saying is that it was in place, it was
taken out, the pressure since 1985 from Westfair Foods
has been to take it out of the contract. You are saying
that the last contract basically included some further
complications in terms of applying for final offer
selection. The provision basically relates to the
legislation.

You are saying that actually during the negotiations
one of the issues that kept the strike going was the
fact that Westfair wanted to take out final offer selection.
| want this to be very clear to Members of the
committee, because this was a company that came
before this committee and said that they were arguing
that final offer selection should be repealed and at the
same time in their presentation were giving Members
of this committee the impression that somehow they
would be quite happy if final offer selection was to
remain in place despite the legislative repeal. What you
are saying is that since 1985, Westfair Foods has done
everything possible to get rid of final offer selection,
not only before this legislative committee but in contract
negotiations with the union.

Mr. Ziegler: Clearly, that is correct. Clearly, that
prolonged the strike last year and there was a lot of
issues of them getting legal opinions. At one point, !
think they even wanted a letter from the Minister of
Labour (Mrs. Hammond) saying that yes, we can opt
out of it. They actually wanted the Minister of Labour
to write a letter saying that yes, it is okay for Westfair
to opt out of legislation. That prolonged the strike and
it caused problems in these negotiations and in the
last. | can see it being an issue, as you mentioned
earlier, of us trying to negotiate it back in, if it is not
in the legislation it could cause a dispute. in the
legislation it cannot cause a strike, there is a provision
not allowing that, but it will cause problems if we have
to try and negotiate it in again.

Mr. Ashton: It just amazes me that a company can
come in and make a presentation and give such a
different picture of what has happened in reality. { really
thank you for coming before the committee in clarifying
exactly what has been happening in terms of fina! offer
selection.

I just want to move on, just a couple of quick
questions, | know we do have other presenters this
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morning. There have been various criticisms made of
final offer selection and it was suggested that people
are going to sit out the strike for 60 days so they can
access it because of the 60-day window and | would
like your comments on that.

It has been suggested that it weakens the
accountability of the union leadership to its membership.
You have had the experience obviously in terms of
Westfair. | would like you to comment on that. It has
even been suggested that final offer selection divides
people in the workplace. | want to ask you for a few
comments on that as well, because we have had people
come before this committee, particularly Westfair
workers, who have said this is the only thing that has
brought people together in the last two and a half year
period.

Right now in Westfair the people who walked the
picket lines, the people who crossed the picket lines,
the new employees are all saying the same thing, that
final offer selection should be kept in fegislation and
Bill 31 should not pass. So | want you, if you can, to
deal with some of those, and those are, quite seriously
and this has amazed me, but those are three of the
strongest, supposedly strongest, arguments that have
been put forward on final offer selection. | would
appreciate your comments on those.

Mr. Ziegler: It is a comment that | have heard, and |
could not believe either, talking about staying out for
the 60- to 70-day window. | think people have said it
correctly, that if you have been on strike yourself, you
could never make that comment. That is like saying |
am going to take a hammer and hit myself on the head
so that when | stop it feels good. That is what the
comparison is. It is like you are saying, | am going to
beat myself up, so when | stop | feel better. No one in
their right mind is going to lengthen a strike a day if
they can settle. No one is going to lengthen it a day.

If you have been on strike, the problems it causes
financially, the problem it causes with your family, the
problem it causes with your co-workers, the problem
it causes with your customers, the problems it causes
with your employer. No one in their right mind would
walk a day longer than they have to, if they can settle.
Now that does not mean that people are going to give
up on their principles. If there is something at stake
as far are their principles or what is right or wrong,
yes they will walk a day longer. But not just so they
can apply for FOS.

With regards to the comments about weakening
leadership. Every union leader is responsible to the
membership and every leader that | know of in Manitoba
is elected by their membership, and that is the ultimate
test. If they do not deliver to their members, if they
do not do a good job, they do not get elected. That
is the bottom line. You know the process, in our union
we vote in favour of final offer selection, but before
that decision to make an application occurs, it is
discussed amongst our committee, it is looked at. We
do not just say, okay, | do not care what the members
want, | am doing this. If we did that, people would not
be around to get elected. We are like you. We are like
politicians. We get elected by the people who are out
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there. We serve them. We do not serve, we ain’t gonna
be back. The final comment, | forgot the third part of
your question, | apologize.

(The Acting Chairman, Mr. Darren Praznik, in the
Chair.)

Mr. Ashton: 1 just have one final question. We started
off our discussions this morning, our questions, in terms
of this latest development, of the fact that the Liberals
are finally recognizing there is value in final offer
selection. This, by the way, is from the Party that said
it was bad legislation; it was bad for unions; it was bad
for business. Now, they have come a little bit along
the way. | feel it is not enough; 10 months is really—
it is not much more. | mean, the Minister of Labour
{Mrs. Hammond) could do that, but for the Liberals,
they probably feel it is a big move, because
psychologically they have admitted—and it is right here
in the Free Press this morning; it is not based on
comments here—that final offer selection has some
value.

We have been desperately trying to get the message
through to them. People before this committee have
desperately been trying to get the message through
to them. It appears that they have a littie bit of an
inkling of how important this is, but quite frankly, and
| agree with you, 10 months is just not enough.

*

(1130)

| want to ask you and give you an opportunity as |
have to other people, and this time particularly focused
on a Liberal Caucus that you know has moved, maybe
not a long way, maybe an inch or two towards
recognizing the value of final offer selection, what would
you say to them? | think you mentioned the right word
before, about serving your members, and that is what
unions do—serve their members. In terms of serving
their constituents, what appeal would you make to
them? What would you say to them, and i have said
this in context whether it is public or private, to try
and convince them to move even further now?

They have gone those first couple of steps. That is
the toughest part in any particular situation. What would
you say to them to try and move them where they need
to be, which is to give final offer selection a real chance
in Manitoba so that the many people that you
mentioned, who have been before this committee, who
have spoken from the heart, people who have never
presented to a legislative committee before, who gave
up their time, their scarce spare time, who came here—
many of them were so nervous, it was clear—never
spoken in public before, who spoke from the heart and
told heart rending stories about what it is like out there
in the jungle of labour relations that some people would
like to see as happening, what would you say?

| give you the opportunity to really address your
comments to the Liberals this time, because you may
be more of an optimist than | am. | am not sure if we
can move the Conservatives, but in the case of the
Liberals, they have taken that first step. What would
you say to try and convince them to go to the point
that is necessary to save final offer selection and give
it a chance?
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Mr. Ziegler: Clearly the Liberal Party elected a lot of
new Members to the Legislature in the spring of 1988,
and that support came, unfortunately, at the loss of
another Party, that | support. But it came from one
group of people. It came from working Manitobans. It
came from working Manitobans in the city and across
the province, and those working Manitobans saw
something in the Liberal Party; they were hoping that
they cared for them.

You have those employees in rural Manitoba who
work for a small employer; you have the smallemployers
in Winnipeg. You have the women, and women are a
group that are strongly hit by this Bill, because a lot
of them are single women. They cannot afford to take
the time off. A lot of them cannot even afford to live
on the money they are making, never mind the effect
of a strike. The new Canadians—we had the speech
from a garment worker—another group that cannot
afford the effect of a strike. If you really care for those
groups of Manitobans who got you elected, show them,
because if you act the other way and do not give it a
chance, those same Manitobans will go back against
you. Those are the Manitobans—they have been here
speaking to you, or they are the ones that have not
gone through it yet. If you want to keep their support,
show them you care for Manitobans.

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Praznik): | understand the
Member for Thompson (Mr. Ashton) said he had one
final question, the last one.

Mr. Ashton: | do not have a question, Mr. Chairperson.
| just want to thank the presenter and | really hope
the message that you brought to the committee, some
of the people, will get through. Thank you very much.

Mr. Edwards: | have a question for the presenter. You
mentioned that final offer selection was a part of your
collective agreement. You said you negotiated your
agreement in 1981 and it was negotiated out in 1986.
How did that come to be negotiated out in 1986 if final
offer selection is such a wonderful thing?

Mr. Ziegler: Like in all situations with negotiations,
that contract expired May 5, 1985. The contract was
settled August 11, 1986—dragged on for a year,
whatever. The employer was adamant about getting it
out. They made other proposals to us that were good.
We have a responsibility to take our membership those
offers. In 1985 we never looked at what was going to
happen in’87. We did not feel we could take a strike
in 1986, after a year and a half of negotiations over
final offer selection.

We did not give it up easily, but negotiations is a
give-and-take process. We did not want it out. That is
how it came out.

Mr. Edwards: Again | am going to refer back. Mr. Smith,
when he was here, commented that in western
Canada—

The Acting Chairman (Mr. Praznik): Could | ask Mr.
Edwards to speak up, please? We are having a hard
time hearing him.
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Mr. Edwards: Sure, Mr. Chairperson. When Mr. Smith
was here, he indicated, | believe, that the Westfair
workers in Manitoba, perhaps in Winnipeg, whichever
ones were on strike in 1987, were poorer paid than
any other workers with that company in western
Canada. To your knowledge, is that true?

Mr. Ziegler: | do not believe so. Because of time lapse,
there may be a couple of months where their contracts
may have been renewed before us and they were ahead
of us. But, no, that is not my understanding. In fact,
| think we were paid more. There may have been an
exception with some categories in Edmonton, just
because of timing and everything else it is possible.
But for a short period, they were ahead of us. By and
large, the industry is pretty standard across the country.

Mr. Edwards: Let me get this straight. Mr. Smith says
you are one of the poorest paid or the poorest paid,
he may have said. Your evidence is that you are far
from the poorest paid. You are above average, are you
saying? Are you one of the best? You are the person
who negotiates things. You must do comparative
analysis even within the same employer. Where do you
rank?

Mr. Ziegler: We are among the top group. As | said,
it depends on the exact date of the expiration and
renewal. There may have been on one category—I
guess it reflects our concern for our members—I think
in Alberta they may have taken a wage increase in lieu
of some other items, and | think it was a lump sum
payment. They may have been ahead of us for a short
period.

Over all the years, we have been in the top group
of wages. In fact, in the food store industry, some of
the Winnipeg agreements are some of the best in North
America, for some of the rates. B.C. of course has a
higher rate; they have a higher rate for everything. We
are some of the best in the country.

Mr. Edwards: |[f final offer selection were to be repealed
prior to your contract coming up in May of this year,
it has been suggested by Mr. Smith, and | think Mr.
Mitchell has made this argument as well, that some
amendment to the present legislation would be required
to allow you to access final offer selection. | have read
your provisions which you have very kindly provided
to us.

(Mr. Chairman in the Chair)

| note that it does say, with respect to final offer
selection, that the parties agree that in the event either
party invokes final offer selection, in accordance with
the provisions of The Manitoba Labour Relations Act.
| frankly do not understand what amendment in the
labour relations Act would help you use final offer
selection if the provisions had been repealed. That
argument has been made, that an amendment couid
somehow allow you to continue gcing to final offer
selection. Is there any way you see that as possible?
Is there an amendment we could attach to this
legislation, which might allow you to use final offer
selection?
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! frankly do not see it on the wording of the
agreement, but maybe you can enlighten me.

Mr. Ziegler: | do not see any amendment directly that
would help us. if the legislation is gone, it is gone.
Clearly that is the prerequisite. if there was some way
you could strike down the limits the company put in
the contract, about saying that someone cannot opt
out, or provisions of the legislation, and if they, no
matter what their contract says, have full access to the
legislation, that would be an improvement.

There are other improvements | would like to see
with moving that 30- to 60-day window later, because
you mentioned in one of your comments that quite
commonly negotiations go beyond the expiration and
therefore the only option would be a strike. So if you
want to make an amendment, let us move the
application, the first window later on, close it right up
to the day of the expiration of the contract or even
later.

Mr. Edwards: | am sorry, | did not mean to cut off the
presenter. With respect, if the final offer selection
provisions as they exist were repealed, would there be
some fall-back? Is there anything in this collective
agreement which we have not seen which would put
you back into a final offer selection scenario pre-1986,
and are there any fall-back final offer selection
provisions in the collective agreement that we have not
seen?

Mr. Ziegler: If the legislation is gone, then there is
nothing in the contract, there is nothing—any side
agreement, there is no—it is gone, and we will probably
be on strike this year.

* (1140)

Mr. Edwards: It might interest you, and | just raise
this, that it was my impression from Mr. Smith’s
comments, that he was seeking an amendment and |
have to look back to his presentation. | do not have
it in front of me right now. He was seeking an
amendment in order to preserve the final offer selection
for this coming round of negotiations and he was
extremely concerned, as | think Mr. Mitchell was, that
arepeal would not allow final offer selection to be used
in your workplace in this coming negotiation. Now, those
are his words, not just said, | think, spuriously, but he
came to this committee and | believe put it on the
record that he wanted an amendment to ensure that
final offer selection could be used. Do you know what
he was talking about?

Mr. Ziegler: | think | know what he was talking about,
but it was not what it sounded like, if you know what
that means. He was talking about—it is called double
talk. If Mr. Andy Smith wants to make sure there is
final offer selection in this contract, give me an hour,
I will draft up the wording, and the two parties can
sign it today. They do not need the legislation. | will
draft it up, | will take our 1983 wording, | will retype
it, he puts his signature on one side of the page, | put
my signature or Bernard Christophe puts his signature
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on the other page, and yes, if he is serious, that is all
we need. We do not need the legislation amended.
Double talk.

Mr. Edwards: | guess the only other thing which
concerns me then is that this letter you have provided
to us is dated October 3, 1987. | am not positive—I
would want to speak to Mr. Smith again—as to whether
or not that is the only ietter. | appreciate that you have
brought this letter forward, suggesting that it is the
letter Mr. Smith referred to. | also appreciate the fact
that you said Mr. Evans has told you that this is the
only letter of this sort discussing final offer selection,
and | will, quite frankly, if | can in the very near future,
attempt to pursue this with Westfair and determine if
there is another letter, because { would iike, if at all
possible—and i think you would agree—for us as
legislators to ensure that final offer selection can be
used, assuming that that was the spirit of the agreement
in 1987, albeit repealing the legislation as a whole. Then
we will certainly want to consider that, and | think the
Minister would as well if that was indeed the spirit and
intent of the agreement. But we do need some
clarification.

| also make the point that, while obviously these
hearings have been dominated by Westfair Foods in
terms of presentations from individuals who work there
and yourself and Mr. Smith, and we appreciate hearing
about this relationship as one which we can learn from,
we are here obviously dealing with legislation which
covers every workplace in this province, every
workplace under the jurisdiction of the provincial
Government, and so | am very cautious not to give too
much weight to one particular relationship, albeit it is
one we can learn from, but there are many hundreds
of others, and | simply bring that to your attention.

Mr. Ziegler: You probably hit part of the nail on the
head. It has been dominated by Westfair members
because they are the most recently affected. If you held
this committee after the Burns strike, if you held it after
Griffin Steel, if you held it in Alberta after Gainers, you
would have those people, but the reason you do not
have them is that it has not occurred. But do not think
for a moment that it will not again if this legislation is
gone.

Mr. Edwards: | will just make one comment. My friend
from Thompson has indicated that he went down into
the trenches, as it were, and spoke to Westfair workers.
I know a lot of Westfair workers. | also took the
opportunity to drop by the store at Kenaston and Grant,
and, just for your information, | spoke to the first eight
people that | came across who were working at that
store.

You might be interested to know—and | do not
dispute that there are many who have come here with
very serious and high levels of emotion about this issue,
and | do not doubt their sincerity—that, out of the
eight, five had no idea of what final offer selection was.
One knew what it was and liked it, one knew what it
was and expressed no opinion, and the eighth knew
what it was and said that he did not like it. Out of
eight, one person knew what it was and did not like
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the international Woodworkers of Canada for a number
of years. The employer decided to lock out the
employees just prior to Christmas, and the threat was,
look at what we are going to do for you, boys and girls.
You are not going to be getting any money for
Christmas, and you are going to have to starve to death.
Talk about Scrooge City. That is exactly what he was
implying with that lockout.

The ultimate was that the whole community stood
behind the employees, to the negative feelings of the
owners of the place, Evans and Mardeen Premachuk.
They could not believe the community had such strong
support for the workers that worked at the Wescana.
People refused to go there and eat. People refused to
go there and take rooms. The airport bus refused to
cross the picket line. As a result, since the lockout has
ceased, the bus can no longer even pull on the property
of the Wescana. They will not allow them because they
supported the workers.

{ mean, that is totally ludicrous. They are providing
a service of bringing the clientele to the hotel, and now
they are forbidden to do that. The taxis were treated
with the same respect. One firm in The Pas crossed
the line. So the employees were told, after the lockout
was over, do not dare call any other taxi if someone
asks for a taxi; you must call this particular company,
because this other one would not cross the line.

Now, this is totally ludicrous. These things in a small
community do more harm than good. | just cannot see
that the Government is not prepared in this day to
enforce some legislation that will make it a positive
experience for negotiating. It is good for both sides.
It is not just a win-all situation. It is good for both. If
you happen to get a situation where people get to
loggerheads, perhaps it is even personalities that
become involved—I do not know. Quite often, frankly,
I think that is what it is. | think it is personalities.

People then get to a point where no matter how long
you give them, they do not want to reach a settlement.
Final offer is the alternative that we need. We need it
as a strong legislation. We need it for the working men
and women. Just looking at the people from SuperValu,
my God, do they need it? Mr. Ziegler was right. Look
at all the single parents we have over there. In this day
and age—I| used to work as an economic security
counsellor. | did that for eight years. | tell you, even
on part-time wages, these people are having one hell
of a time making ends meet. If they go on strike there
is absolutely no way they are going to be able to meet
the commitments. We are going to have people back
on thewelfareroll. We are just creating such a negative
atmosphere that it appalls me.

Popping back to the pie issue again and the lockout,
do you know what surprised me? The Chamber of
Commerce in The Pas refused to cross the line. They
refused to hold their meetings in the Wescana. | tell
you, that was an eye opener to the owners of the
Wescana Inn. They could not believe that the business
community showed such strong support for the workers.
We talk about neighbourhoods and working together —
Trappers Festival, a well-renowned festival.

They have utilized the Wescana Inn to put entertainers
up, to hold the casinos, to just do a variety of things.
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Well, this year they were basically told they could not
even go near the place. Do not even touch us with a
10-foot pole. Oh, that is good community morale, and
it showed. | was up there and | was appalled. So |
guess | am going to leave you with this thought, that
something has to be done, and something has to be
done that gives us strong, strong legislation, and | am
asking you to ensure that we have final offer selection
on the books for the protection of the labour movement
and the employer, because it is going to solve some
problems for both sides. Thank you very much.

Mr. Ashton: | am very pleased to seeyou here, by the
way, to give the northern perspective, because | know
the many years you have spent in the North. it is
interesting because when you mentioned The Pas it
could have just as easily been Thompson. Westfair
Foods, one of the stores they did not open was in
Thompson and | know why, because people, whether
they are members of a union or not members of a
union, and in a lot of cases the employers would not
have crossed that picket line, it is just not done.

You mentioned about hotel strikes. We had a hote!
strike a few years ago and it was virtually shut down
because people just would not cross the picket lines,
to go to the vendors, to go to the pub. It is a different
sort of situation that you are in although it can still be
pretty tough on a community, even with that level of
support. It can create a lot of problems. Inco is the
same. There has not been an Inco strike yet where
Inco has hired strikebreakers, certainly in Thompson,
and yet it has a lot of pressure on communities.

You mentioned the hotel strike. | was just wondering,
in the yearsyouwere in The Pas, how many, just roughly,
how many strikes that would have occurred in the
community over that period of time?

Mrs. Malanowich: As | say, | can think of the Western
Grocers one. | know that there were a couple with the
mill. That was when | first moved up to The Pas, and
we have not seen a lot of that in the last while. The
correctional officers went on strike for a period of time.
The Canada Manpower people—the Post Office people
went on strike; we supported their strike. CN had strike
issues. | do not know whether | can think of any more
right off the top of my head or not.

Mr. Ashton: It must have been a fairly extensive
number; this is a fairly small community. Thompson is
really in the same way, relatively speaking. During that
period there were a fairly significant number of strikes
in that community.

* (1200)

Mrs. Malanowich: Yes, | did not mention the hospital
either because they have had a couple or three with
the lab techs. There was almost a strike with MONA.
We were preparing for that. Things thatyou must realize
in a small community, you have a labour component
that is there as a support mechanism and a helping
hand to any group that is faced with this kind of
problem.

Mr. Ashton: It is interesting, you talk once again for
the northern perspective. | have raised this question
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Ms. Wasylycia-Leis: So what you are really saying is
that final offer selection, because it is a new way to
theway of prolonged strikes or lockouts or other labour
dispute resolution mechanisms, actually keeps people
from having to fall back on welfare, and therefore has
the potential for keeping down costs in that area to
Government and to taxpayers as a whole. Is that what
you are saying, in part?

Mrs. Malanowich: Yes, that is what | am saying. | think
that the circle can go around. You can eliminate a lot
of the hardships by putting legislation in place that will
assist in alleviating strikes.

Ms. Wasylycia-Leis: | am pleased that you focused in
on thai, not only because we have the two Ministers
here that | mentioned, but aiso the Liberal Critic for
Economic Security. He has said that he is concerned
about the whole issue of social assistance and getting
people off of welfare. | think you have made the case
very well, and | hope that message is getting through.

Just a final question which, if i can try to summarize
in terms of your theme and presentation and just get
your final comments on it, it seems to me that what
you are saying is that support for final offer selection
iscoming frommanygroupsin our society, fromworking
people everywhere, because it is in a way a new
approach that lends itself more to co-operation, to
conciliation, to compassionate solutions, rather than
the old way of conflict and long, prolonged, drawn-out
strikes or lockouts, and that in fact this new approach
is something that will have to shape our society in the
future and particularly shape labour relations, not
because it is something that will give an unfair
advantage to workers, or not in terms of attracting or
keeping competitive business in this province, but
because it is a new way that society has to come to
grips with and must be a model for all aspects of our
society. Can you elaborate a bit on that and wrap up
our, my comments anyway?

419

Mrs. Malanowich: | agree with what you are saying.
Conflict is not the answer to settlement. It never has
been, and it never will be. | see this as being an area
in which Government can act responsibly to ensure
that kind of conflict is eliminated. Sure you are going
to have some disagreements at the table; that is the
way bargaining goes. But there certainly is an avenue
with this that can eliminate the brutality and the
negativism that is imposed, again | will say it, on the
workers, because all the negatives seem to go to
workers. The employer always seems to be up here on
a pedestal during any strike action, and it takes two
at the bargaining table to reach a settlement, not just
one side, and there has to be give and take. This can
be done in a non-conflicting manner, but if people are
not ready to reach that settlement in that fashion,
something has to be done to ensure that that is carried
through in a non-conflicting manner and that can be
done by final offer.

Mr. Chairman: Thank you very much. Mr. Rose.

Mr. Bob Rose (St. Vital): Mr. Chairman, we have no
questions, but we would like to sincerely thank Mrs.
Malanowich for sharing her experiences with us today.
| appreciate it very much, your coming down.

* (1210)

Mr. Chairman: Okay, thank you very much. Just prior
to rising for the morning, | would like to remind
committee Members and members of the public that
the committee will be also meeting this evening, March
6, at 8 p.m.

The time is now 12.10 p.m. What is the will of the
committee? Committee rise.

COMMITTEE ROSE AT: 12:10 p.m.





